DOOGAR & ASSOCIATES

Chartered Accountanls

Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Members of
Himalyan Expressway Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audiied the accompanying linanelal stolements of Himalyan Expressway Limited ("the Company 7). which
comprise the Balunce Sheet as ul March 31, 2025, and the Statement of Mofit and Loss (uoclading other
comprehensive icome), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Staterient ol Cash Flows for the year then etided,
and notes Lo the financial slatements, including o summary of the signitficant accounting policies mul silier explanulory
infrmation (hersinafter referred 10 a8 “the Ammcial statements™,

I our opinion and W the hest of owr information and aceording o the esplimations piven o us, e aloresiid il
statainents give the inlormatton required by the Companies Aol 2003 {the Acty in e manaer se reguited and give o
true and air view in conforntity with the ndian Accounting Standards preseeibed under secion 133 ol e At read
with the Companies (Indism Accounting Standurds) Rules, 2015, us amended. ("nd AS™) mnd other aceaunting
principles gencrally accepted in India. of the state of atihirs of the Company as a March 31, 2025, the profivand foss,
totul comprehensive income, changes in equity md jis cash flows for the year ended o that dute..

Basis for Opinion

We conduoted our audit in accordance with the Standards oo Auditing (54 specilivd under Seetivne TR o il
Act. Dur responsibilities under those SAs are Turther deseibed inthe “duditor s Responsibifities gl the Awdit of the
Finuncial Statepients “section of our repart, We are independent of the Company i accordunee with e Code off
Bihics issued by the Institsie of Chartered Accountanis ol india ogether with the ethical reguiremunits it are
relevant to our audit o the financial statements uider the provisions ot the Act und the Rules ercunder. and we hike
fulfitied vur other wihice! responsibitities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Uthics. W belivve
that the awdit evidence we have oblained s softicient and appropriale o provide @ basis e ou opinien on the
financial starements.

Emphasis of Matter ~ Inappropriateness ta Going Concern assumption

We draw atteniion o Note 1.2.3 1o the Financia) Statements, which indivstes that the Company has accumulaled
Josses, and s et worth Tas fully eroded s w March 31, 2025, The Compans "< Habilines exeecded T wlabimsats o
at the bulance shoet date. Alsa, the Company has defbatted in payment o' ins term boan fom 1CTCT Bank amf enterad
inle a detinitive agresmen) dated Apsil 020 2024, with respect o endorse e coneessian of the Prajeat in Lo ol he
Newe 8PV for the balance convession peried subjecled to receipt of MIAD thab approval As uresultaod o the
absunee of wry alternate business plans wad hinding suppors, e going concem assumption is nol uppropriate for the
preparition of finweial statements of the Company as al and lor the period ended March 3120250 Aceondingly, these
Financial Statements of the Company liave becn prepaied on o non-poing concern busis e, oasels are inctsured 2
lower ol careying amount and extinated net renlisable values nnd labilities are stated of thede fie s alae i the tinao il
statements.

Our apinjon is not moditied in respect of wis matter,
Emphasis of Matter — Damages and penalty impased by the NHA1

We draw sitention to Note 30.1 to the Financial Statements. which describe that iational Highways Authority of
India (NHAT) has imposed the penalty and damages aggregating to INR 3298.00 Lakhs on account of oon-
compliance of contractual obligation of the Concession Apsecment. However, basis the curren: procecding and
submission madc b) tlm Companv for wamer as dehmd in thc Note 3001, the mdndfcn"cm is ol [h‘. view that Llu

this Financial Siaements.

Our opinion is not moditied in respect of this mater.
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditer’s repart therean

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. he viher inlonmalor comprises the
information included in the Company’s annual report, but does not include the financiul stalements and our auditars”
report thereon.

Qur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do rot express any form ot
assurance conclusion thercon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our respensibility is 1o read the viher informanon and. in
doing so, consider whether the other information is maierially inconsistent with the firancial staements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears 10 be materially misstated, 11, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other infonnalion; we are regeored wreport that
fact, We have nothing o report in this regard.

Responsibility of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(3) of the Act with respect
the preparation ot these financial staiements that give a trug and (air view of the fnarciol posilion. e
performance (including other comprehensive income). changes in equin and cash flows of the Company n
accordance with the accounting orinciples generally accepted in [ndiz. including the ladin Accounting Stdards (nd
AS) spearfied under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance ol adequale accounrling
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the asscts of the Company and tor preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularitics; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; makmg
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prodent; and design. implementation and maintenance ol adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracs ared completeness ol the
accounting records. relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statomenls ihat pive g frue and fair
view and arc free from material missiatement, whether dee to Fraud o eoron,

In preparing the financial statements, management and Board of Dircclors are responsible for assessing the
Company’'s ability to confinue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicabie, matters related to going concern and
using the poing concern basis of accounting unless managemen either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
opcrations, or has no realistic alternative but 1o do so.

The Board ef Dircctors is also responsible for overseeing the Company s firancial reporting process
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and w issug an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reusonable assurance is a high level of assorance, but is not a guarantes that an zudil condueted i aceordasce with
SAs will always detect a material misstatermnent when it exists. Misstaiementy cao arise Teom Traud or crror and are
considered material it individually or in the apgregate. 1hey coulid ~easonarhy be expected o inlloemee 1he ceonwic
decisions of users taken on the basis ol these financial statenienty,

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs. we excrcise professional judgmen and maintain protessional skeplicism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify amd assess the risks of material missiatement of the financial stalevienis, whether due w frand or
error, design and perform audit procedures respansive to 1hose visks. and obitain audil evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate 10 provide a basis for our opinian The vish ot not delecting a materia?
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than tor one resulting rom ereor. as traud inay i ehee collusion,
forgery, inienmional omissions, misrepresemations, or the override of internal conirol.

»  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(0) of the Act, we are also responsitile for exprassing
our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal Hnancial contols with relerence w Ninancial
staternents in place and the operating effectivencss of such controls,

»  Cvaluate the appropriate pi—i\“’gil,(-g:gin nting policics used and the reasonahleness ol accounting estimates sng
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Conclude on the appropriateness of managerent’s use of the goiag coneern biusis o accounting il based

an the audit evidence oblained, whether @ material uncertaintly exisis related 1o everls or conditions that may
cast signiticant doubt on the Company’s ability 1o contnue as a gomg concern, 1 we conclude thai a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw atiention in our auditor’s report to the related diselosures
in the financial statements or, if such disclosares arc inudequate, to modity our opinion, Qur conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’'s report, Howsver, future events or
conditions may caese the Company to cease (o continue 4s 4 going concent,

Evaluate the overall presemation, structure and content of the financial statements. wcruding the discwsures,

and whether the financial statements represem the underlying traosactions and events in a manner thai
achieves fair presentation.

We communicale with thosc charged with governance regarding, among other matiers. the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in interral control that we ideatity
during our audit,

We also provide 1hose charged with governance with a stalement thal we aave complaxd with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence. and to communicate with them all relalionships and other matters thal may
reasonably be thought 1o bear on our independence, and where apphicable, related safeguards,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Qrder, 2020 (~the Order™), ssted by e Conuiad Guvesnment o
India in terms of sub-section (11} of section 143 of the Act. we give in1ae “Annmesure A7 g statement on the
matters specificd wn paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable

2. Asrcquired by Section [43(3) of the Aci, we report that:

.

h.

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which o the best of aur knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have beor kept by the Comyplany so Tar as 0l
appears from our examination of those books;

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income). the
Statomcnt of Changes in Uguity and the Swatement of Cash Flows deah with by this Report are e
agrecment with the books of account;

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial stalemenss comply with ihe Indivn Accounting Standards
prescribed under Section 133 ofthe Act:

Qo the basis of the written representations received trom the directors as on March 310 2023 wwhen on
record by the Board of Dirvectors, none ot Ine directors is disqualified as on darch 31002025 fixim being
appointed as » director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act:

The matter described in Material Uncertainty related to Going Concern pacagraph above. in our ozinion.
may have an adverse effect on the functioning oi' the Company;

Wiih respect (o the maintenance of accounts and other matters connecied therewith, referenee iy made o
our remarks in paragraph ()(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11{g) of the Companies {Aodit and
Auditors) Rulcs, 2014 (as amended);

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial simements of
the Company and the operating cftectiveness ot such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure
B”. Our report expresses an uumodified opinion on the adequacy and operating ffectiveoess of the
Company’s internal financial conrols over financial reporting;

With respect to the other matters to be incleded it the Auditor's Report in accardance wih the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act. as amended. according 1o the intormation and expianalion
given to us, the Company has nol pald any managerial remuneration during the year;

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors™ Report in accordance with Rule 11 ol'the
Companies {Audit and Aoditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and 1o the best of owr istormation and
accordinglo the explunations giver to us:




vi.

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigatians as @ March 31, 2029 on its
tinancial position in its financial statements - Refer Note 30 10 the financizl statements:

The Company did not nave any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
thete were any waterial foresecable losscs;

There has been no delay in transierring amounts. required to be transfersed. 1o the Tnvesion
Education and Protection Fund by the Company;

{a) The Management has represented thal. to the best of its knowledge and belicil na funds
{(which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loansd or
invested {either from borrowed funds or share premium or any olher sources or hind of tunds)
by the Company 1o or in any other persan or entity, including Torciga eniity & Intermedinnies™,
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or viherwise, that the lotennediany shatl.
whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest o ather peesons o entities ientilied o am
manner whatsocver by or an behalf ot the Company (~Uhnimae Beneticianes™ o provide 1y
guarantee, security or the like on behalt of the Ultinate Beneticiavies;

(b) The Management has represented, thal, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
{which are matenal either individually or in the apgregate} have been recerved by the Company
from any person or entity, includicg foreign entity (=Funding Parties ) wiib the ongersinding.
whether recorded in writing or otherwise. that the Corapany shall. whetho, direcdy ar
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons o entities identified moany e whstsoeser by or
on behalf of the Fuading Party ("Ultimate Beneticiaries™) or pronide sy guoaraniee, seceriy or
the likc on behalf of the Ultimale Beneficiaries:

{c) Based on the audit procedurces that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing bas come to our notice that has caused us 10 believe that e
representations under sub-clavse (i) and (1i) of Rude 11{e). s provided under {2) and (h) above,
contain any material misstaterment,

‘The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year,

Based on our examination, the Company has used accounting sottware for maintaining i
books of account for the financial year ended March 31, 20295 which has a teature of recording
audit trail {edit Jog) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant
transactions recorded in the software . Twither. dering the vourse of o uudit we didd not coog
across any instance uf the andit trail fealure being lanpered witl,

Ahdiliomally. the vudit wail, where enabled, Ras peen presarsed by the company as pee the
statutory requirements for record retention.

For Daogar & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Pariner
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Annexure “A” to the Independent Auditor’s Report
(Referred to in paragraph | under, Report on “Other Legal and Regulalory Requirements™ section ot our report
to the members of Himalyan Expressway Limited of even date)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and furnished by the Company. and the books of
account and records examined by us during the course of pur audit, and 10 the best of our knowledge and behet,
we report that:

til.

i,

In respect of the Company’s Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets: -
{A) According to the information and explanation given 1o us and based on the records produced before us.
we are of the opinion that the Company is maintaining proper records showing Hll particolars mcluding

quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

{B) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets

. The Company has a program of physical verification of Property, Plant and Lquipmem o cover all the

asscls once every three years which, in our opinion. is reasonable baving regard 1o 1he size of the Company
and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the program. certain Property. Plant and Equipment were
physically verificd by the management during the year. According to the information and explanations
given to us. discrepancies noticed on such verification were accounted for in the books of account,

There is no immovable property, held by the Company and accordingly, the requirement to report on
clause 3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

. The Company has chosen cost model for its Properiy. Plant and Equipment and intangible assets.

Consequently, the question of our commenting on whether the revaiuation is based on the valuation by a
Registercd Valoer, or specifving the wnount of change, if the change (s [0% or maore in the aggregate of
the net carrying valuc of each class of Property, Plant and Equipment or intangible assels does not arise.

Based on the information and explanations furnished to us, no proceedings have been initiated on the
Company for holding benami propetiy under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act 988
{as amended in 2016) (foemerly the Besami Transactions (Prohibitiony Act. 1988 (45 of 1988)) and Rules
made thercunder, and therefore the question of our commentng or whelber the Company  has
appropriately disclosed the detarls in its standalone financial statcments does nol arse,

(A) The physical verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable intervals by the Management
during the year and, in our opinion, the coverage and procedure of such vecification by the Managemeat is
appropriaie. The discrepancies noticed on physieal verification of inventory as compared to book regords
were not 10% or more in aggregate for cach class of inventory and have been propecly dealt wile i the
books of accounts

(3) The Company has notl been sanctioned any working capital limits from banks o Hnancial institions
during any point of time of the year. Accordingly, the requirement ta report on clause 3(10(b) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not made investraents in, provided any guarantee or security or granted any loan and
advances in nature of loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships
during the year. Accordingly, reporting under Clause 3(:11) of the Qrder are nat applicable.

There are no loans, invesiments, guarantees, and security in respect of which provisions of sections 185
and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are applicable and accordingly, the requirement to repert on clause
3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us. the Company has net accepted any deposil
Accordingly, vepodting under Clause 3(vY of the Ovder are not applicable,

Pursuant to the rules made by the Central Government, the maintenance of Co~l Records has been

prescribed uw/s. 148(1) of the Companics Act, 2013, We are of the view that prima facie the presenbed

accounts and records have been maintained. We have not, however, made a dewailed examination of the
Tﬁ;ﬂnq\whclher they are accurate or complete.

- ";




Vil

Viil.

a,

In respect of statutory dues:

According 1o the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the

records of the Company, amounts deducted/ accrued in the books of account in respect ol undisputed
statutory dues including Goods and Services Tax ("GST’), Provident fund, Employees™ State Insurance,
Income-tax and other material statutory dues have generally been regularly deposited with the
appropriate authorities.

According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of GST, Provident fimd,

LEmployces® State Insurance, Income-tax or other statutory ducs which have not been deposited on
account of dispuies, except for the following:

1. Income Tax Act, 1961 | Income Tax | High Court 2008-2009 60.97 | 60.97 |
2. Income Tax Acy, 1961 | {ncome Tax | High Court 2010-2011 74.88 74.88
3. Income Tax Act, 1961 | Income Tax | High Court 2011-2012 31.94 311.94
4. Income Tax Acy, 1961 | [ncome Tax | CIT(Appealsy | 2022-2023 73.35 -]

According o the information and explanation given to us and the records of the Company examined by us.
there is no income surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961, that has not been recorded in the books of account.

(@)The Company has defaulted in repayment of dues to financial institutions, banks and Government /
debenture holders during the year as stated below. This matter has been disclosed in notes to the tinancial
statements;

9.631.29 % 35-1131 Days

ICICI Bank Limited Principal

ICICI Bank Limited | Interest 15,846,495 - 1949 Days
Jaiprakash Associates Limited Principal and 58000 x> 118 Days
{Prcference Share Holder) Dividend

*Principal payment amounting to INR 9,631.29 Lakhs remains unpaid as on March 31,2025,
¥¥* Interest payment amounting 10 INR 15,846.49 Lakhs remains unpaid as on March 31, 2025,
*#* Refer Note No. 12 to the financial statements.

{b) According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our audit procedures, we
report that the Company has not been declared wilful defautier by any bank or financial wstitution or
government or any governmenl authority,

(c) According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and explanations given
10 us, the Company has not obtained any term loans. accordingly, the reguirement ¢ report on clause
{(ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) According 1o the information and explanations given 10 us, and the pracedures performed by us and on
an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has not raised funds on
short term basis.

(e) The Company does nat have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Accordingly. the requirement o
report on clause 3{ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable (o the Company.

{f) The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Accordingly, the requirement 1o
report on Clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Cempany.

.




X.

Xi.

xi,

xiil.

Xiv,

XV

avi,

xvii.

xviil.

XiX.

{(a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public otfer (including
debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under Clause 3(x)a) of the Order are not
applicable 1o the Company.

(b) According to the information and explanation give to us, company has not made any preferential
allotment or private placement of shares or fully or parily converible debentures and hence reporting
under Clause 3(x)(b) of the Order ars not applicable to the Company,

(2) During the course of the examination of the baoks and records of the Company, carried out n
accordance with the generally accepted auditing praciices in ladia, and according o the mivrmaton and
explanations given to us, we have neither came across any instance of material fraud by the Company or
on the Company noticed or reported during the year, nor have been informed of any such case by the
Management.

(b) During the course of the examination of the books and records of the Company, carvied out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India. and according to the mfermation and
explanations given to us, report vader section 143(12) of the Act, in Formn AT -3 was nol required o be
filed. Accordingly, the reporting under Clause 3(xi)(b) of the Order are not applicable w the Company.

(¢) During the course of the examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in [ndia, and according to the information and
explanations given to us and as represented to us by the management, no whistle blower complaints have
been received during the year by the Company. Accordingly, the reporting under Clause 3(xi¥e) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company.

As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable o it, the reporting
under elause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable o the Company,

According 1o the information and explanation and records made available by the company. the Company
has complied with the provision of Section 177 and 188 of the Companics Act, 2013 wherg applicable. for
all ransactions with the related parties and the details of related party transactions have been disclosed in
the financial statcments as required by the applicabie accounting standards,

{a} In our opinion the Company has an adequate inteenal audit system commensurale with the size and the
nature of its business.

(b) We have considered, the internal audit reports for the year under audil. issued (o the Company during
the year and till date, in determining the nature, tinting and extent of our audit procedures.

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with
him. Accordingly, the repotting on compliance with the provisions of Section 192 of (he Act under clause
3(xv}) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) In our opinion, the Company is not required to be regisiered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank
of India Act, 1934, Accordingly, reporting under Clause 3(xvi}a), (b) and (¢} of the Order are not
applicable.

(b) Based on the information and explanations provided by the management of the Company. the Group
{as defined in the Core Investiment Compames (Reserve Bank) Directions, 20163 does not have any CICs,
which are part of the Group. We have not, however, separately evaluated whether the miormation
provided by the munagement is accurate and complete. Accordingly, the repocting under ¢lause J{xvi)d)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not incurred any cash losses in the current financial year. However. the { ompany has
incurred any cash losses of INR 59,33 Lakhs in the immmediately preceding Tnancial yewr respuctively.

There has been no resignation of 1he statutory auditors during the year and accordingly the ceporting undes
clause (xviii) is not applicable.

As indicated in the “Emphasis of Matier Paragraph™ of our Main Audit Report the financial statements of
the Company have been prepared on other than going congern basis. According to the information and
explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of reahzation of
financial assets apd—payment of financial labilities, other information accompanying the financial

,
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statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our
exumination of the cvidence supporting the assumptions, we are of the opinion 1hat material uncertainty
exists as on the date of the audit report that Company may not be capable of mecting iis liabilities existing
at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet
date.

xx. The Company is not required to contribute any amount towards Corporale Social Responsibility (CSR).
Accordingly, reporting under Clause 3(xx)(a)&(b) of the Order are not applicable.

For Doogar & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 001
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditors” Report on the financial statements of Himulyan Expressway
Limited

{Referred to in paragraph 2(h} under *Repart on Other Legal and Regulatory Reguirements” seciion of our repart
of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Contrels Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial conirols with reference to financial statemens of Fhimalyan Uxpressway
Limited (*“the Company™} as of March 31, 2025 in conjonction with cur audil o the linapdial stalements of the
Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management s responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting {“the Guidance Note™) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountanls of Tadin (1C A1)
These responsibilitics include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating eftectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Act,

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is 10 express an gpinjon on the Company's internal Hinancial conrols with reference 1o
tinancial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the
Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, 10 the extent applicable 10 an audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial siatements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
requite that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit o obtam reasonable assurance
about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were cstablished and
maintained and whether such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Cur andit involves performing procedures 10 obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the imernal financial
controls with reference to financial statements and their operating, effectiveness, Our audit of internal financial
contruls with reference o financial slatements included obtaining an undeestanding of such internal financial
controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and cvaluating the design and vperating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed visk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
Jjudgmeny, including the asscssment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ninancial statements. whether
due 1o fraud or error.

We belicve that the audit evidence we have obtained is suificient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audn
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference 1o financial statements is o process desipned o peovide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial stalements
for external purposes in accordance with generally acecepted accounting principles A company’s internal
tinancial controls with reference to financial statenients include those policies and procedures that (1) pertain o
the maintenance of records that, in reasonable dewil, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3} provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s asscts that could
have a material effect on the financial statements.




Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting with Reference to Financial
Statements

Because of the inberent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management averride of contrals, material misstatements duc to error or
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with
reference 1o financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial conirols with
reference to financial statements nay become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, 10 the best of our intormation and according to the explanations given to ug, the Company has, in
all material respects, an adequate interna) financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal
financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal contro) stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Contrels Over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Doogar & Associates
Chartercd Accountants
Firm Registration No. 00035

Vardhman
Partner >
Membership No. 51734

UDIN: 2864134 FAMUXKDETL9
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HIMALYAN EXPRESSWAY LIMITED

BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2025

(All Amount in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2025

As at
March 31, 2024

ASSETS
Non-current assefs

Property, plant and equpmcnt 2 16.93 41.68
Intangible gusets 3 - 22,997.25
Fimancial assets
Oiker tinancial assets 4 - 595
Non -Cusrenl tax assels (net) 5 . -
Total non-current assets 16.93 23,044.88
Current assets
Inventortes 6 - 2.88
Finaneial assats
Cast and cash cquivalents 7 4,654 57 1,373.66
3ank balanees otker than cash and cash equivalents [ 295 279
Other financial assets 9 11576 1598
Curvent Tax Assots (Net) 10 2041 3.97
Other curvent assets 11 1.6 69.14
Total current asscts 4,995.34 1.463.42
Assets classified as held for sale 44 17.684.18 -
Totzal assets 22.696.65 24,513.30
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Equity share capital 12 11,809.00 11,809 00
Other equity 13 {58,917 25) (52,879.46)
Totul eguity {47,108.25) {41.070.46)
LIABILITIES
Non-current lHahilitics
Vinaneal iiabalities
Borrowings 14 19.224.1 18,570.97
Provisions 15 s4Q 597
Other non-cument liabilitics 16 - 1.353.02
Tatal non-current labilities 19.230.11 15,925,096
Current dishilities
Pivancial liabilities
Bomowings 17 27,21%.40 20,540.52
‘Irade payables 18
total oustanding dues of imicre and small enlerprises : -
tetal oustanding ducs of credilors other than imicro and small entemprises 73620 81553
Other financial liabilities 19 15,855 08 12,284,790
Oiher current liabilities 20 733 5.38
Provisions 21 g i1 7.58
Total currant Liabllitles 43.826.18 30.4653.80
Laahilities related 10 asszts beld for sale 44 6.748.61 -
Tota) linbilitics 69.804.9 65,583.76
Total equity and liabilities 22,696.65 24,513.30

Sammary of material accounting policies

The accompauying mdes orm oy intepeal pact ol (he Finnneial Statements
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HIMALYAN EXPRESSWAY LIMITED
SIATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARChH 31, 2025
(Al Amount in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

Year ended
March 11,2025

Yegr cnderl
Marceh 31, 2024

Discontivning operations

Revenue from operations 22 5,396.53 4.747.67
Other income 23 873.65 722.72
Total incame 6.270.18 5.470,39
Cxpenses
Operating and maintehance cxpenscs 24 447.25 507.74
Imployec beuelits cxpensc 25 477 RS 456,76
Fiaanee costs 20 5819061 I,481.97
Depreciation and amortization expensc 27 1,958.69 2,988 1V
Impairmeent of 1011 ¢ollection right 27A 3,471.34 7,396 50
QOther expanses 28 132.63 132,93
Total expenses 12.307.39 16.964.11
Prolit/(l.oss) before exceptional items angd tax (6,037.20) {11,493.72)
tixceptional items . -
Profit/(Loss) belore tax {6,037.20) (11,493.72)
Tax cxpense:

Current tax

[ax adiustinent catlier years 40,05

Deferred tax . .
Profit/{Loss) for the period {6.037.20) (11,533.77)
Other comprehessive income
Items that will not be reclassificd to profit or loss
Remeasuremems of the net defined benefit plan {059 0.09
Income tax relating to items that wall noi be reclassified to prefit o loss - -
Other comprehensive incoine {0.52} 0.09
Total comprehensive incownr for the period {6,037.79) {11,533.68)
Farnings per cquity share (Tace valne of INR 10 each) 29
Basic (1% (9.77)
Diluied (5.1} (BTN

Summary of material accounting pelicies }
The aceampanying notes forem an integral part of the Financial Statemnents

For Doogar & Associates

Chartered Accountants
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HIMALYAN EXPRESSWAY LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CASH FL.LOW FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025
(All Amount in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2025

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Discontiuning operations
A. Cash flow from operating activities
Net profit before tax and exceptional ftems
Add: Depreciation
Add: Impairment of tall collection right
Add: Finance costs
Less: Intercst income
Less: Grant amortisation
Operating profit before working capital changes
Adjustment for ;
(Increase) / decrease in other current assets
(Increase) / decrease in other non -current assets
Increase / (decrease) in trade and other payables

Increase / (decrease) in oher current liabilities
Increase / (deergase) in non-current liabilities
Increase / (decrease) in provisions
Cash generated from operations
Income tax paid, net of refund

Net cash generated Irom operating Activities

B. Cash flow from investing activities
Interest received
Investment in fixed deposits
Purchase of fixed assets

Net cash generated from investing activities

C. Cash flow from financing activities
Procceds from borrowings, net
Tuterest paid

Net cash used in financing Activities

Net change in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Notcs:

1. The Cash Flow Stalement has been prepared under the indirect msthod ds setin the Ind AS-7 "Cash Flow Slaternent”.

2. Figures in bracket represents cash outflow,

Summary of material accounting policies

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements

(6,037.20) (11.493.72)
1,958.69 2,988.19
3,471 34 7,396.50
3,796.95 3,670.16
(149.74) (0.28)
(624.38) (721.30)
2,415.66 1,839.55
(312.35) (10.87)
(2.05) -
(77.46) (155.37)
1.95 (2.53)
(0.64) 2.06
2,025.12 1,672.84
(16.44) 17.92
2,008.68 1,690.76
149.74 0.2%
(0.16) 428
(1.48) (0.30)
148.10 4.26
1,332.63 (706.88)
(208.51) (278.28)
1,124.12 (985.16)
3,280.91 709.86
1,373.66 663.80
4,654.57 1,373.66

For Doogar & Associates
Chartered Accountanis
FRN No. 00056,
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HIMALYAN EXPRESSWAY LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

{All Amount in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

A. Equity Share Capital

Balance as at
April 01, 2023

Changes in equity
share capital during

Balance as at
Murch 31, 2024

Changes in equity share
cupital during the year

Balance as at
March 31, 2025

the year

11,809.00 11,8(39.00 - 11.809.00
B. Other Equity
Particulars I_l.iquit?’ component of Rgser\fe and Sun.‘plus Total

Financial Instruments* Retained earnings

Balance as at April 01, 2023 15.663.85 {57,009.62) (41,345.77)
Profit for the period - (11,533.77} (11,53377)
Other comprchensive income - 0.09 0.09
Balance as aft March 31,2024 15.663.85 {68,543.30) {52.879.40)
Loss for the period - {6,037.20% (6,037.20)
Other comprehensive income - (0.59) (0.59)
Balance as at March 31, 2025 15.,663.85 {74.581.10) (58,917.25)

*represents equity component of 25,00,000, 11% redeemable preference shares of 2 100 cach fully paid up and Jaiprakash
Associates Limited (holding company) has provided interest free unsecured loan of INR 17,800.00 Iacs in compliance with loan

agreement with [CIC] Bank Limited. (Refer note 13)

Summary of material accounting policies
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Finuncial Statements.

1

For Doogar & Associates

Yardhma
(Partner) N, oo
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Ranvijay Singh
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HIMALYAN EXPRESSWAY LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

Material accounting policies and other explanatory information

1.1

1.2

General Information

The Company is having rights through concession agreement datcd August 31,2007 {or design, engineering, finance,
construction, development, operation & maintenance, rehabilitation and strengthening of the existing 2 land road and
widening to 4 lane divided carriageway facility highway from Km 39,860 1o Km 67.000 of the Zirakpur to Parwanoo
Section including Pinjor—Kalka-Parwanoo Bypass section of Nationa! Mighway No. 22 1w the states of Punjah,
Haryana and Himachal Pradesh. [ndia on bwld, operate and transfer basis. In order to reduce debt of the Company, the
Board of Directors of the Company in thewr meeting held on January 25, 2024 have approved the substitution of the
concessionaire, Ienders of the Company, namely [CICI Bank Linuted and India Infradebt Ltd. have elected Nee Infra
[ncorve Opportumtics Fund acting through New Asset Management Private Ltd., its mvestmem manager (Neo Asset)
as the successful bidder.

The Lenders, Buyer, and the Company have since then executed & defimtive agreement {"Agreemen”™) on April 02,
2024 for the substitution of concessionaire, encompassing the sale of toll rights for the reimaining concession period.
Pursuant 1o the terms outlined i the Agrecment, the substitution of the Company with the new Special Purposc
Vehicle (SPV) of Neo Asset is contingent upon approval from the NHAIL The Company has reccived o-pomaple
approval from the NFLAL ont December 30, 2024 and final approval on March 29.2025, The transaction consideration
[NR 18,000 lacs is subject to adyustiments in accordance with the terms specified 10 the Agreement,

Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements
1.2.1 Basis of Preparation

The Company has adopted accounting pelicies that comply with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS}Y as notificd by
Mimstry of Corporate Affairs vide notification dated February 16, 2015 under Scction 133 of ihe Conpanies Act
2013, Accounting policies have been apphed consistently 1o all periods presented in these financial statements, The
financial statcments referred hereinafler have been prepared in accordance with the requuremients and instructions of
Schedule 1 to the Companics Act 2013, amended from time to time, applicable to compames w whom Ind AS
applics.

The material accounting policy information related to preparation of the financial statements has been disclosed 1 the
respective notes. The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previeus financial yeuar except for
the impact of matter stated in 1.2.3 (read with note 1.1) regarding going concern

1.2.2 Usc of estimates and jndgements’ -

I he prepacation of Financial Staiements for the year ended March 31, 2025 (hercotatier to be referred us “financiai
stwtements”) require estinates and assumptions to be made that affect the reported amount of asser and habalmies on
the dute of the financial statements and the reported amount of the revenue and the expenses during the reporting
period. [hfterence between the actual results and cstimaics are recogmezed in the peciod in which the results are known
fmateriahized,

1.2.3 Going Concern assumption:-

(ke Campany has been incurring contmuous losses due to lower traffic on the toll rood. rexutting m a net ioss of INR
6.037.79 lacs during the period. Addittonally, the Company’s current liabilitics cxcecd 1ts current asscts by INR
2789507 lacs, The accumulated losses amount o INR 74,581,350 lacs. and the Company’s net worth has been {uily
croded g5 of March 31, 2025, .

Farthermore. the Company has been in continaous default in the repayment of 1 teem loan abtained from IKCICT Bank
Limited. T he Company had formally requested (CICT Bank for g one-time saitlement of its outstanding debt by
propusing the substitwtion of the concesanpaive for the remaining concession penod, Subsequently, a delimbne
agreement bas been entered into. as mentoned m Note .1 above.

Due te these fuctors, and in the abscnce ol an alternative busingss plan or fundiog support, the gomg concern

dssumpbon s ne longer appropnate Tor e proparation of the Company™s finaacal statements as of and for the pornd

ended March 31, 2025 _Aecardingly, these Daanoal Statements have been proparad on o non-going coneern bisis
- A =
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HIMALYAN EXPRESSWAY LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

recorded at their fair value. However, the Board of Dircctors currently does not have any intention of liquidating the
Company.

1.3 Material accounting policies

The financial statements have been prepared using the material and other accounting policies and measurcment bases
summartzed below:

I.  Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE): -
PPF are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

The carrying amount of a property. phant and equipment is de-recopnised when no future economie benefits are
expected from its use or on disposal,

Machine spares that can be used only in conneetion with an item of PPIE and their use 1s expected for more than
one year are capitalized.

Depreciation on property plant and equipment is provided on straight line method based on estimated useful Jife
of assets as preseribed in schedule 11 to the Companies Act, 2013,

Depreciation on additions to / deduction from property plant and equipment during the year is charged on Pro-
rata basis / up to the month in which the assct is avalable for use / disposal,

Gains and losses on de-recopnition/disposals are determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of those asscts. Gains and Losses it any, are recognised in the siatement of profit or
loss on de-recogniton or disposal as the ease may be.

[1. Intangible Assets:-

Intangible assets acquired scparately are measured on initial recognition at cost less accumulated amortisation
and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

The cost of an intangible asset includes purchase cost including any nnpon dutes and non-refundalble taxes.
and any directly attributable costs on making the asset ready for its intended use.

i. The Cost of Softwares are amortized on a straght line basis aver a penod of six years,

ii. Anmortization on Intangible Asscts (Toll Road} is provided in the mannerarescribed in Serial-2(a1) of
Sehedule 11 to the Companies Act, 2013,

‘The amortisation period and mothod are reviewed at least at cach reporting penod. [f the expected useiul lite of
the asset is significantly different from previous estimates, the amortisation period i changed accordingly.

11, Capital work in progress:-Capital work-in-progress represents capital expenditure incurred in respeet of the
project under exceution and 1s carried at cost, Cost includes construction costs, borrowing costs capitalized and
other direct expenditure

1V. Asset held for sale:-

Non-current agsets or disposal groups are classified as held for sale 1 their carrying amount 15 mtended o be
recovered principally through sale rather than through contmuing use The conditson for classification of held
for salc is met when the non-current asset or the disposal group 1s available for immediate sale and the some s
Inghly probable of being completed within one year from the date of classilication as held Tor sale. Non carrent
assels or disposal groups held for sule are measured at the lower of corryimg amount and tair value loxs cost o
sell,

A gan or loss of the non carrent asset is recopnised at the date o) de-recognition. Onee classificd as held-Tor
sale, property, plant and cquipment are no longer amortised or depresivted.

V. Borrowing e

/I"
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HIMALYAN EXPRESSWAY LIMITED

NOTES
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FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS I’'OR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

Borrowing cost included interest and amortization of ancillary cost incurred in connection with the arrangement
of borrowings. Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset
that necessarily takes a substantial period of time 1o get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part
of the cost of the respective assets. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period they oceur.

Impairment of non-financial assets: -

An assets 1s treated as impaired, when carrying cost of asseis exceeds its recoverable amount. An impaired
loss is charged 1o statement of profit and less in the year in which an assets iy identified as impaired. The
impaired loss is recopnized 1n prior accounting period is reversed if there is a change in the estimate of the
recoverable amount.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand and at bank, deposits held at call with banks, other short-term
highly Jiquid investments with original maturities of theee months or less that are readily convertible to a known
amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value and are held for the purpose of
meeting short-term cagh commitments,

For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows. cash and cash equivalents consists of cash and short term
deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafi as they are being considered as integral pant of the
Company’s cash management. Bank overdrafs are shown within borrowings in current liabilities 1o the balance
sheet.

Retirement and other employee benefits: -
Retirement bepefit costs and termination benefits

Payments to dehned contribution retivement benefit plans are recognised as an expense when employcees have
rendered service entithing them to the contributions

For defined henefit retirement benehit plans, the cost of providmg benefits is determined using the projected
unit credit method, with actuarial valuations being cartied out at the end of cach annual reporting year, Re
measuremient, conmprising actuarntal gains and losses, the effect of the changes to the asset coling Of
applicable) and the return on plan assets (excluding intercst). 15 reflected immediately in the Bulance sheet
with a charge or credit recognised in other comprehensive income e year in which they oceur. Re
measuremenl recognised (noother colprcliensive income 15 reflected immediately in retiined carmings and
will not be reclassified 1o Statement of profit and loss. Pust service cost  recognised in Statenent of profit
and loss m the year of a plan amendment or when the Company recognises corresponding resteictinng cost
whichever Is earlier Net mterest 15 caleulated by applymyp the discount rate to the net defined benctic hamlny
or asset. Defined benefit costs are categonized as follows:

» service cost (Includimg current service cost, past service cost, as well as gains and losses on curtaliments
and scttlements):

o net interest Cxpense or income; and

» re-medsurcment

The Company presents the first two components of defined benefit costs in Statement of profit and loss in the
line item ‘Employee benehts expenses’. Curtaillment gans and losses are accounted for as past service costs,

-
The retirement benefit alhgation recogmsed in the Balance sheel represents the actual defic:t or sarpius iy the
Company’s defined benetit plans, Ay surplus resulting fram this calewation is limited to the present vatue of
any economic bencfits avadable in the torm of refunds trom the plans or reductions in future contribotions to
the plans,

Short-term apd alher long-term employee benefits
= N

-
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HIMALYAN EXPRESSWAY LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

IX.

XL

A llabiliy is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and sularies, annual leave and
sick leave in the year the related serviee is rendered at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be
paid 1n exchange for that service,

Liabilivies recognised in respect of short-terin employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount of
the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the related service,

Liamlities recognised in respect of other long-term cmployee benefits are measured at the present value of the
estimated future cash outflows cxpected to be made by the Company in respect of services provided by
employees up to the reporting date.

Tax Expenses:-
Income T'ax 13 determined in accordance with the provisions of the [ncome Tax Act, 1961,

Current Tax:-Current Tax are recognized in statemcnt of profit & loss except when they relate to items that
are recognized in other comprehensive income or dircctly in equity, in which case, the current tax 1s also
rccognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Deferred Tax:- Deferred tax is recognized using the balance shect approach on temporary differences at the
reporting date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and thewr carrying amounts for financial reponiing
purpose at reperting date. Deferred imcome tax assets and habilities are measurcd using tax rates expected o
apply to taxable income i the years im whicl those temporary differences when they revered based on the
laws that have been enacted or substantially in acted by the reponting date.

Deferred tax assets arc recognized for the unused tax credit to the extent that it is probable thai taxable profits
will be avalable against which the losses will be utibzed. Significant management judgment is required to
determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recogiised, based upon the Jikely timing and the level
of futurc taxable profits.

Earnings Per Share:-

Busic earnings per share is computed using the net profit for the year attributable to the shareholders® and
weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per share is computed using
the net profit for the year attributable to the shareholder’ and weighted average nuober of equity and potential
equity shares outstanding during the year ncluding share options, convertible preference shares and
debentures, except wherce the result would be anti-dblutive. Potential equity shares that sre converted during
the year are included m the calculation of diluted earmimgs per share, from the beginming of the year or date of
issuance of such potential equity shares, to the date of conversion. o

Provisions and contingencies:-
a) Provisions:-

Provisions are recogmised when the Company has a prescin obligation as a result of a pust event, it is probable
that an outilow of reseurces embodying economic benetits will be required to settle the obhigation and 4 rehable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obliganon, Provisions are not recognised for futors operuting losses,
Provisions arc mcasured at the present value of manageiment’s best estimate of the exponditure requored to settle
the present obligation at the end of the reporting penod The discount rate used to determine Lhe present value is
a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the ume value of moncy and ihe nisks specific to the
liabihty The imergase in the provision due to the passage of ime s rgcognised as nterest expense,
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HIMALYAN EXPRESSWAY LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

b) Contingencies:-

Contingent habilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation ansing from past events, the existence of
which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not
wholly within the control of the Company or a present ohligation that ariscs from past events where 1t is either
not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot
be made. Information on contingent liability is disclosed in the Notes to the Financial Statements. Contingent
asseis are not recognised. However, when the realisation of income is virtually certan, then the related asset ig
ne longer a contingent asset, but it 1s recogmsed as an asset,

XII. Revenue Recognition:-

Revenue 1s measured at the fair value of the consideration reeeived or receivable, taking into account the
contractually defined terms of paymem net of returns and allowances, trade discounts and volume rebates,
excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government,

Revenue is recognized from toll read based on Toll Foe Collected.

[nterest income is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the outstanding amount and the rate
applicable. Interest received on income tax refund s accounted for on actual recapts basis.

XIII.  Government grant;-

Government grants relating 1o the purchase of property, plant & equipment and intangible assets are included
in current or non-current liabilities as deferred mcome and are eredited to statement to prafit ar loys in the
proportion of the amortized cost of related asscts and presented within other income.

XIV. Critical accounting estimates, assumptions and judgements:-

I the precess of applying the Campany’s accounting policies, management s niade the Tollowing estiniatus,
agsumptions and judgements, which have sigmilicant effect on the amounts recopaised in the finaneial
statement;

a)  Pruperly, plaol and equipment

The Company asscss the remaining useful lives and residual value of propeity, plant and eguipment.
Management belicves that the assigned useful lives and residual valoe are reasonable, the cstimates and
assuptions made to determine depreciation are critical to the Company’s financial position and performance.
b Income taxes

Munagement judgment 15 required Tor the caleulation of provision for meome taxes and deferred tax assets
and habilities, The factors used in estimates may differ from actval outcome which could lead 10 sigmficant
weljustinent w the anmounts teported in the standalone tinancial statements

¢} Contingencics

Management judgement is required for estimating the possible outflow of resources if any, n respect of
contingenciesfclaim/litigations against the Company as 1t is not possible to prodict the ontcome of pending
matters witk wecuracy,

X¥. Recent pronouncements

Muustry of Corperate Affairs CMCA™) notifies now standards or amendments (o ihe oxistmg standards under
Compamies (Iniha Accounting Standards) Ruoles as issued from time to time. Far the year ended March 31,
2025 MCA has not netified any new standares o amendments to the exisung sieodards applicable to the
Company

-1
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HIMALYAN EXPRESSWAY LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025
(All Amount in INR Lalhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note No. 3
Intangible assets

-

Intangible assets under

Particulars Service Concession Sofiware Total
Agreement®

Gross carrying amount
As at April 01, 2023 69,267.90 258,23 69,526.13
Additions - - -
Disposals - - -
Assets held for sale™ - - -
As at April 01, 2024 69,267.90 258.23 69,526.13
Additions - -
Disposals - - -
Asgsets held for saler {69,267.90) {258.23) (69.526.13)
As at March 31, 2025 - - -

Accumulated amoertization and impairment
As at April 01, 2023 35,894 35 255.98 36,150.33
Amortisation for the period 2.981.34 0.71 2,682.05
Impairment 1oss 7.396.50 - 7.396.50
Misposals - - -
Assets held for sale™ - - -
Ax at March 31, 2024 46,272.19 256.69 46,528.88
Amaortisation for the period 1,952 66 (.54 1,953 20
Impaimment loss 347022 018 3,470.40
Disposals - - -
Assets held for sale (51,695,08) {257.40} (51,952.48)
As at Muarch 31, 2025 - -

Net carrying amount
As at March 31, 2024 12.993.71 1.54 22.997.2%

As at March 31, 2025

* Right to calleet toll from the projeci Zirakpur parwanoo expressway (Toll road)

~ Refer naote 44




HIMALYAN EXPRESSWAY LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FORR THE YEAR ENBED MARCH 31,

(All Amount in INR Lakhs, unless atherwise stated)

Note ao. 4

Other financial assets (non-current)

Unsecured, considered good - Measured at amorused cost
Securly deposits

Less: Assers class:Nied as eld Jor sale (refer note 44)

Note no, 5

Mon-Current tax assefs (net)
laxes paid*

Less: Proviston o income tax

*includes amount paid under protest amounting INR 167,79 lacs

Nate no, §

Inventorjes (valued at cost or NRY whichever 35 lower)
Steres and spares

Less: Asscts classified as Lield tor sale (refer note 443

Mati no. 7

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand

Balances with banks

- In current account (refzr note 7.1 and 7.2)

- In deposil accounls with maturity upto three months (refer nole 7.1}

7.1 Tneludes INR 4,384.58 lacs in deposit account.

2025

As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
7.99 5.95
{7.991 -
- 5.95
167.7% 167,79
167.7% 167.79
4.58 288
{4.58)
- 2.88 .
14.86 14.20
255,18 1,359,460
4.384.53 -
4,654.57 137160

7.2 Lncludes bask balance INR Nil with Punjab National Bank and J&K Bank. Taese bank accoun) remained dornant due to pending KY C of autorised sipnatory
and balance confirmaticn is not available. No transaction has been carried cut 10 these acepnnt and the aceoual 1o Purgal Naunna! Bank has been closed duiing the

year and Managemenl is of the view that no adjusiment needed n this regpect in these financial statements.

Nofeno. 8

Bank balances othor than cash 2nd cash equivalents
Other bank balances

Earmarked baiznces with banks*

*Pledged witz government authorities

Nuie no, ¢

Other financial assers {corvent)

Advance againal expenses

Other receivables -

Note ao. 10
Current tax assets {nef)
Taxes paid (net of provisions)

Note no. 11

Other current asscts

Prepaid expenses

Advancr Lo Vendin

Less: Assets classiFed as held for sale {refer note 44)

il
|
1/

/

- 2.95 279
295 .79
0.69 0.43

315.07 15.55
315.76 15.98
2041 .97
20.41 3.97
79.00 69.14
102
(78.35)
1.67 69.14




HIMALYAN EXFRESSWAY LIMITED
NOTES FORMING FPART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

(Al Amount in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note no, 12
Equily share capitsl

Particulars

As ad March M, 2025

Ay at Ma

rih 3y, M4

Number

Avihorived share capital:
Equity shares of INR 30 cach

11% Redeemalle Cumulacve Preference Shares of IR0 each

Issued, subseribed & fully prid up share capital:
Equ iy shares of INR 10 each

12,50,00,630
25,00, 060

11.80,90,000

Amouat (Lakhs} Nomher Amaunt (Lakhs)
12,500 00 12,50,00,006 12,300.00
2,500,680 25,060,000 250000
11.809.00 11, 80.560,200 L1, R00.00

(1) Termsfrighss aitached to cquity shares:
The Cempany has only one class of cquity sharss faving a par velug of INR 10 per share and heldes of the ceuity stare is entifled 2o aase vote per share gad eatitied fee proscadi
dividend, if any declaredipard by she company, subjeci to aporoval of sharchoiders.

(i} Termsdeighiy arached to prefecence shares:
The rate of dividond os preforence shares will be decaded by ibe Bowe of Diectors as and when isseed  Preferesce shares 0 aod when ssuee shall have the cwmuanive right to
recerve divdend ax asd when declaced angd sha!l have prefoeential right of -epayment on amoent ol capital, Pursuast o non payment of divideet for hree comenutive years
prefeience shazcholders s cnntled w one vole per share, Tre Company had imtially issucd preferenee shares 1o iy Heldog Compary, which were due s recempl-on an
Drccember 4, 2022, Upon rie Company's request, Hhe axdemption penae i exlended by two years on Movember 12, 2020 with the revised redesplon date beinyg December 4,
2024 Subsequently, on November 5, 2024, the Company sstmmtted o fucther request ta dhe Holding Corepany seeking an sxiession of thre ccdenption penad by anacddiborel
clght yeass, Appeoval for s extension = cuncally awaitee Hom RP of Holding Company

(31} Buconeilision of the cquiis shares aurstandiog ab the bepinginge aud at the end of the pechnl

Particulars

As at Mar

th 31, 2025

As ut Ma

veh 31,2024

Number

Amoun [Lakby)

Number

Amaount [Lakdhs)

shares

sdiin af the beganing af the perod
Shares sssued duning the yea

11.80,50,000

1LES, 20,000

11,809.00

11,80,90.000

11 %909 00

Shares vatstanding at the end af the period 15260 11.80.90.000 11.8819.00
(iv) Details of the shares held by each sharcholder halding more than 5% shares:
Name oF shareholder As at March 31,2025 : i I{\s al Mareh 31, 2I(12rl i
Naw af Shures Y al Muldiseg Nua ul Shares Yo ul Hulding
dmprakash Associates Lamnea and (s norminges T EGUU80 RN i 1,80,50.000 |53

(v

—

Shurcs hehl by the Baolling e ompine:

Particulars

As af March 31, 2025

As at va

reh dlL 2024

Lgwity Shares

No. of Shares

Amaeunl (l.akhs)

No. of Shares

Ampouni (Laklis

Taiprakash Agsociates Limited and its nominees 11L.E20.840,000 | ERDG.00 11 80.20.000 11.504.00
{vit Derails of shares eld by peomaters a1 the el of thi pevind
As al March A1, 1015 As al March 31, 2024

Particuelars

%o of shares helg

Change in sharcholding

Yo nl shaeey held

Change in
stusrehohling

Promoices

100%

%

100%

0" Ik

() Datadds of equity shaves alfotted as fully patd-up wathool sy mest being cecerved in cash Juriig e pened of Gve years dumediately preceeding the balanee sheet daie s NI

h, '_‘;_.
“&ff—iﬂﬂx’,

=

W
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‘_—L{//’/

=
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HIMALYAN EXPRESSWAY LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

(Al Amouant ia INR Lakhs, unless athcrwise stated)
As al

Mareh 1, 2025

Noie no. 13
Qther equity
Reserve and surplus

As at
Mareh 31, 2024

Retamned carnings (74,58:.10% (08,543.30)
Equity component of Financlal Instrument 15.661.8% 15.603.85
{58.917.25) {R2.87Y..46)

(i} Rctained carnings
Reta:ned eamings comprise of the profits#lnsses) of the company carned 1] date ner of distributions and other adjustments,

(iiy Egoity component of Finaneizl Tnstroment

This consists of the equily cempoenent of redeemable preference shares of 25,00,000, 11% redeemable preference shates of 2 100 each fully paid up and laiprakash
Assoctates Limited (holding company) has provided 1nterest free unsecured ioan o INR 17,800.00 lacs (n compliance wiih 1oan agreement with 1CIC) Bank Linuted




HIMALYAN EXPRESSWAY LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS YOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025
(Al Amouai in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Note no. 14
Borrowings (non-currens)
Secuved
Redeerablz non-convertible depentiies 1,360 1] 20558
Term tazan trome Bank 14,441 38 14,441 38
Unsecired
Laan Tram related parey
hiter-corporate leans 14 213 01 12.6u0,.54
Redeemakic preferonce shaces 5.011.70 4,515.05
35,035.40 33,702.78
Less: Carrent maturities of non-corrent horrowings {reclassify 1o note 17)
Redeemable nos-corvertble dehentures (1360310 (65 4747
Term loon fioir Bank (14,441 3&) i1d,441 38
19.224.71 18.570.97
etnils of tcrmys of repayment for the pon-corrent borrowings (including cnrvent masovities) and security provided in rvespeet of scenred non-cneresnt
boreosings:
Particulaes gt Asat
] Mareh 31, 2025 Mareh 31, 2024
Redecmable secared non {fimvmihlc debentures of INR 1,00,000 cach (Meoratornan Pericd Interesi converted into 13693 2,59, 74
Prize:pal oa Now cenvertiple debomuves )
Yerm lean from Bank 14,241 38 14,441.38
15,810.69 16,505.13

Non-convertible debentures

The Retieemeble Non Cosvaruble Dulintwes {NCDs) ssued ta ledia hutadebi Linited, havisg ootstanemg prinsipal balance INR 136330 Iakhs, secured as 1ank
nan passy with mdedtness of the Conipany vondern the Facslity Agreement with 3CLCH Bank hese aie redesmable o salance 7 quarterly mstalhaesis tll August. 2026,
Considering the seom and defanlt in repayinent of term loan saken Srom 1CICT Bank, the amount of NCDs 15 considered as sthod T boreowang,

Term losa Mrom Bank

Thetern Loan fiom JCICH Bank 15 secured by Hrst charge or all iumovable asscis except project assess. alliangible movahle asscts, alvypaanmble assets, all aeegunls
af the Campany (eserow sceounls! sub accounts), the recenvables, and all autaorised invessment | present and future and pledge ol 30% shaves of the Compacy held
by laiprakash Associates Lid, (Hotdiog Companyd  Tois zepayable in 27 guaneriy nstallisents from Nov. 2009 bll May, 2026, Howevea, vue e defzall in Repayment
the Tl amaant ¢f loan is considered as short term borrowing and Die contpany has made an application for one Bme setlement ¢i loas s ihe sane i3 under process
aw o dlale. {Also, reter note 14 1)

Inter-curporate Inans

lanwakash Associates Limited oldmg company] has provided mieress free unsecurad loan of INR 17,800.00 lacs w complumze wih ioas agscemant with (C1CT
Gank Liomed dated 30 March 2011 and the loan has been account fer o accardance with the regquirenzents of INTRAS. The loan s eepayable alvo the epsymen of
tent loan af IC10) Bank & redemsalion of NC Ds, wimich were origirally repayable by Maw/Aapeus: 2026 Doe toanavalabnlly of lggonaben pias the sioe has been
classificd as onclrrent. -

Redeemable preference shaves

The Compary has issued 119 Regeencable Cusnlabive Preference Shaces of INROIGO eack fatly pasd o for a pestod ol 10 vems eviendenle up w20 yeas,
redeemiable ar any tirse a0 the oprion of the Campany and mmong othe: condiions mier ahaobat the preference share hoelders shall have powwey over cquity share
hobders an the payment of hvidend wnd repayimem of capatal in case of liquidaizon ol the Company  Dug o wnavalabilly of hgmdations plan the smme has beea
classimed as aon-current




HIMALYAN EXPRESSWAY LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025
(All Amount in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
As at Asx at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Notg no. 14,1
The Company has defaulted in repayment of principal and interest in respect of loans feom banks and Mnancial institutions as meaiioned below:

Term doan from bank

- Prircipat
0-3 months 874,536 843.33
3-6 months 843.33 749.62
6-12 months 1,686.65 1,49%.25
=12 months 6.226.75 5,034 .55
9.631.29 8,126,75
- Interest
0-3 months 38421 890,18
3-06 momths 596.63 846.16
6-12 taonths 1,R07.60 1,656.41
=32 montks 12,258.05 B.805.32
15,846,490 12.258.05
Note no. 15
Provisiens (non-gurrent)
Provision jor employee henefits:
Gratuity (funded) (refer note- 32) 378 3.00
Leave encashment (unfundedi(vefer noe: 32) 1.62 2.07
5.40 597
Note no, 16
Other non current liabilities
Deferrad income for capital subsidy (Government grant} 6,728.64 133302

Less ReelassiHied to liablities relaied o assets neld for sale {refer note 44) (6.728.64)

- '?._353.01

'In accordar.ce with the tenms of Concessicn Agrecment with National Highway Authority of India (NMAI) dated 31st August, 2007, NHAI had given the capital
grant of INR 11,700.00 lacs to the Company.

Note no. 17
Borrowings {current)

Current maturitics of non-current borrowings

Secured
Redeemable non-convertible debentuics 1,366 31 690,43
Term lcan from bank* 14,441 .38 14.441 .38
[inseevred
Loan froum related pasly*™* 11.408 71 1140871

27.219.40 26,540.52

*luchudes defaull in repayment of term Joen amoutiing o INR 9,631.29 lakhs (cfer note 14 1) On acconnt of default the lean has boon classified as current
barrowinps 1 accordance with the 1erms of the agreemeni

** Iaterest free and repayable on demand

“Ey

-r'fq‘. ; ‘V’y
O foeou™
20 Accl Wz




HIMALYAN EXPRESSWAY LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025 N
{All Amountin INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
As at As at

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Mote no. 18
Trade payahles
Tatal outstapding dues of wicro and sinall enterprises . -
Tutal vustanding dues of ereditors other than micro and small enterprises™ 730,26 815.53

736.26 815.53

*includes INR 330 01 Jacs payahle to holding company

Trade pavables ngeing as on March 31, 2025

Qutstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Particulars Not Due =1 vear T- 2 vears | 2-3 years =3 vears Total
MEME - - . -
Others 75.38 12991 0.28 0.68 330.01 736.26
Total 75.38 129.91 0.28 D.68 530.01 736.26

Trade payables npeing as on Maovelh 31, 2024

Ourestanding for following periods from due date of paymunt

Particulars Not Due < | vear 1-2 years 2-3 vears > 3 vears Total
MSME - - -
Orhers 191 47 - - i0.93 613,13 815 53
Total 191.47 - - 10.93 613.13 815.53
Notc wo. 19
Other lipanciad liahilitics {current)
Securily deposned against passes 19,66 15 9%
Interest acerued and due on berrowings*® 15.845,49 12,258.03
Payzble to employees B.59 6.77
Other payables
15.875.04 12,284 79
Less: Reclassitied to habihties related to sssers held for sale {refin note 44) (15 96) -
15.855.08 12,284.79

* Refen nete 14,1 tor nteresl in default smourting INR 135,R46 49 lacs payable of JCICT Bank Linited (Period of default 1-194% days}

Note no. 20
Otner corrent liabilities
Stalutory dues payable o 733 538
7.33 5.8
MNote no. 21
Provisions {current)
Provision for einpioyee benefit
Gratuity* 8.04 738
Leave encashment nd 0.a7 0,24
§.11 7.58

*Including INR 7.75 lzkas Jue o gralunty trust




HIMALYAN EXPRESSWAY LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,

(All Amount in INR L.akhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note no. 22

Revenne from operations
Kalc of services

Income trom toll collectizn

Nate no. 23
Other income
Interest income from depos:is
Interest income on Income 1ax refind
{Jther non-cperalng ncomes
Business support service
Grant (capital subsidy) income
Laagility written hack

Nate no. 24

Operatiag and mainteaance expenses

Ropad maintenance gxpenses including majer mamienance
Eicetrigity, power & fuci

Securily sernviee

Consultancy & advisory charges

Vehicles minning & mainenancs

Repair & maintenance of machinery

Office building and camp wainienance

Note no. 25

Emplovee benefits expenses

Salaries and wages

Contribution 1@ provident and other funds
Stafi weliare cxponses

Note na. 26

Finance costs

Interest on tenm loan

Interest on non-convertible debenlures

Interest acerchion on finanzial habiities measured ai amortised cost

Bank and cther finance charges

Note no. 27

Deprectation and amortization expease
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Amortization of intangible assers

Note ne. 27A

Impairment of 101l collection rights and Asscis held for sale

Jmpainmznt of Intangible assets
Impairment of Assets hzld ifor sale

Year ended
March 31, 2025

Year ended
March 31, 2024

5,396.53 N 4,147 67
53%6.53 4.747.67
149,74 0.28
014 1.14
20.52
624.3% 72130
78.87 -
_ 873.45 T2
118.03 182.60
80.78 103 73
82.05 6542
65.81 65,97
19,86 4572
38.57 39.51
ENLS 471
447,28 507.74
45% 52 437.61
4.34 4.40
16,00 14.78
477.85 456.76
3,588.44 3,39273%
2UK,51 27743
200917 1,808.27
454 3.54
5,819.61 5.481.97
.49 6.4
1,983 20 82,05
1.25K.69 2,988.1%
147040 7,396.50
0.95
3.471.34 7,396.50




HIMALYAN EXPRESSWAY LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,
(All Ammount in INR Lakhs, unless atherwise stated)

MNote no. 28

Other expenses

Insurarce

Rank charges
Adlvertisement & marketing
‘I ravelling & conveyance
Postage & telephone

Rates & taxes

Printing & statongry
Directyrs' faes

Payments W auditey

Legal & Professional Charges
Miscellioeous eapenses

Payments te auditors
{a) 1o statutory audjtors
Statutory audit fee

Cerlification fee

{a} To others
Tax audit fee
Cost Audit
Intermal audit fee
Certification and othors

Year ended
March 31, 2025

Year ended
March 31, 2024

7711 §3.24
2.19 1.8
0.38 .38
3135 221
5.26 471
0.62 0.90
107 1.i8
212 178

10.02 838

27.00 2573
am 3.06

132.63 132,95
233 531
0.89 .39
1.76 -
1.78 (I
0.31 0.42

10.09 8.38




HIMALYAN EXPRESSEWAY LIMITED

ROTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCI 31, 2025

{AN Amaunt in INR Lakhs, unlcss atherwise staved)

N ap, 2%
Earnings per share

The caleakian ol Larming Per Shate (EPSY as chsgosed b e sladament af profie asd losy bas oo oade maccondanee sl Indaa Accounting Standard (hwl A5 33 oo

“Eaming e Share”™ wiven as uncer: -

Particulars

A 1ol Less) allriliatable W equtiy shaveholders

Yiar enled
Marel M. 2028

Y oear ended
Muoreh M, 2024

(8037 .20

(15,533,907}

B, Weghted average muorber or ontsbsheg equaly shaves 11,40,94,000 118G 0 00
C Nomnmal value pen eguity seprs 14b [H) 14300
13, Basic EPS (A7) £5.01) [y
. Diliedd B (ALY o - (5.01) t.77)
MNole no. 3
Contingend liahilitics hod eomminments
A, Conlingent liahilittes
Particulars As ol As M
March 31, 2025 March 31, 214
i Cutstanding amonne of bk poaristecs 100 200
w Diomages nposed oy MEAT coaccaunt of delay i penadic maimtesance {reler aote 30 13 3,298.00 3,298.00
e Income fas {reler noe 3 2)
Assessnent year 2000-10 60,97 [GHD
Assessment year 200117 74.8% TR
Agsesaatent yeur 207 13 104 1104
Assessinenl yewr 202324 ERRL

we Dhivicent &8 1% on Redeemalbile 'referenice Share (refer note 30 3

Node 30,30 As per Uoncession Agreen

i, MEL needs (0 cany oun oxjor aaintes

nee ance i every 3 vears The mamtenance was reguned 1o be compheted by 200 #ach,
HAT whien e Comipany Taded o de se doe o bnsingss comhions, theesling MEAT aposed a Penalty af INS 28 50 Coong loe aoa Complanee of provision of Coacessica
Agreemen Suscguentny VILE s mearred e ooaion cepaic spendidene contag FY 120 and cequested NHAL for warees o Uhe damages ingosed MHAT thraugh s detten dated
guirad H stifinhle cosmmerts wil cecammendaiions Toe tukisg Kiether necessiny achion
Forher moe, Independeny Logmesr e caleulaled gdditonal damages ol aforesand nos compbances and vecooenended NI 448 00 Lakhs w be vecoversd drom the
concessicnale I accardance with the provision of the cancessios

Lt review relevont provisions for celoxmion of damages waposed nnd mavide o

Tare agreetnei,

The company has cephee than as per e saud agreemeso the penally clavse woli ke ashacred o1 case e repai and mapcnanze has oot done by company st ne sare Las been
carvigd oul by NHAD throegdh thrd parcy bur i our case fror 215t Margh, 2007 (due date of repaic maintenance) GITdade MERAT cid non comes and any repan and mamstenance
fre thied pany ban wifacl the campany bas dene the reguired repan and maenenance i FY 19-200 Manapement of the company beleve thao it will siccesd o wareer of penalty
imposee by NHAL g merids

Noje 30.2: For AY 200000 AW 200102 & AY 2203 the Company has pretered appeal against the gemand caised by the Ineomwe Lax Depan s whi
Uy Honn e Dol Cweng of Jucheatury af Chandiga:heand deposited v som et I TET 79 aes aggeegate wige) prodest Ose Compsas s conlideny Ua! e

I e peading wilh

anal ol 5o
demande] will o ae sasbanee e complenon of the ocesdings Aceordingly, ue Twithe sdjosinent required i these speekl puipose Nraned siatements

For AY 2003 24, The {ompany &85 ecaved o demand nodice wndes Sectean 155 of the iscome Tax Act dated March 15 2025 e INR 23 35 lacs he demasd palaes w
disallowances of excess amomisanos of Intangible assois ander Sevviwee Concession Apreemenn, The Campany s m the process of [ihing an appeal sefare dhe appiap
apprelhile sulbonry Fsed on the assestment of the management , the Company does non anlicipste any linoncis) habilny aisig Gomthess aaniers, Accordingly. o pravisisi
Thas koo made i e bonks of aceount v respect of the sforemeniaiied deaamd and 1he demand has peen disclased as o comwegenn habihivy

W

Mose Mp3: T
obliga:ic

ive pretoence siare of INR TG each fully paid aperciining 1o INR 2500 Lakhs The Company as uny
e the Company Tas b paid aoy divesiad oue to losses and acecanded the same g5 e ek AY

teopay ol

iyl peceives] Show Catse Notces culn nspection Sepees under e following labor Taws:

W Whmum Wases Wl VR & Cesiral Rules, 1950

¢ Henldmy aazl Oiher Constnchion Workers {Repolatica o inploement wnd Condmsns of Scrvice) Act, 1590 & Central Rules 1998
2

c

Nofe 34 Ve U

Zaual Remwansatwan Ao 1505 & Oentral Rules. 1976
2avinent of Cawans et 1972 & Central Roles, 1972

43

The Pavmert of Bosns Acl 19065 & Centod Rales, 1575

These netices sllege conam wan-comphimees The Company tas iy subouiea appeopoaee rgphes o dhe tespeiibee cotlwnnios peovesding neeessary elaiBoeanaes sl
pestficalions  Based vo the assetanenn ol the mapagement e Canpony does not antcmale any fnancia) Tably aosmg lem these mateos Accordoghly oo pravisien has
e e 1 e ook o acommd inespecs of the aforementioased] noloes

B Commitments 5

A As at
Shareh Vi 2025 Narch 30, 2024

Pardcutnrs

1

Lstmatec] anmennt ol wonine s e Wb eneeted anecapiial acoennl aed oo presded for (et ol
2

vl




HIMALY AN EXPRESSWAY LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART QF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCIL 3L, 2025
(Al Ameunt in INR Lakhs, untess otherwise siaied)

Nole no. 31

Oiher matiers

(a1 A Mmishy of Road Pransport and Thgbways had aeaoanced sesensios of 1001 collecton from b Novesther, 2006 10 2od December 2806 dug 1o Demonetisaticn
Accordingly the Commay bay cequested NIHAL for Compensane against 1ol reveroe 1ass dutmg the sad pernod (9000 2006 60 212 2010) amounting 1o INE W01 Takis, NIAr
asked for Ingependest Consulant's comirests on the sod request of HEL Independent Consultant sugpesied 1o NIAD for Extension of Concession pzriod i whoch eatlecion
of Tee romian suspendec te,, 23 days 5 Tewns 5 chnaies o compensate for i suspension of @il collection Mo cxtension onden 35 eeerved I 2ow but the Comisny 1@ hepelol
ol smitable reliel s repard.

b Lhee i Covid-19 pendesie. there was o complete wockdown moae country and reee movemest of Fraflic was closed on all hghways T spressways Aceordingly NHAI
directed (he toll companizss o closed dows ne 0l aperanen from 26(h March, 2020w #9th Apnil, 2020 The compaay had requested NHAT facvelief on azcovat of (evesue
losy suflTercd demy the saic peood tmountiog TN 511 Lakbs N HEAT asked the corpany to subimil corsohdaded propesal for the said pered asd penosd duning which collecton
wan luss Lhan 90% of Average Daly Feo (throngh “Independent Consultang™), Independent Coasalianl sngpested 10 NHAL far Exlensson of Cencession peviod 1o wiieh
collechon of Fee reman suspended i &, 24 days 13 hours 1o compensare for the suspession ol oll collect:on, Mo extension erde: o ceceived 0l pow but the Coapany s hopedl
OF suiable renel i egard,

Nple np 32
Lmployee benefits obligations
1 Defined eoniribation plany

The Compasy has reeounised wollewing expenses inrespoct ab aw defiocd sonibution ghans:

Particulars Year ended Yoeur entled
March 31, 2125 March 31, 2024
Company's contridution to provident fund R R
Cownpiny's comtripubion Lo 1231 .51 43
_ Tol - 434 440

[L, Defined benelit plans

Faprakash Assecumies Limsted (1AL (e kolding comaany] has constitnted a sepmade gratily fund trust weder the name Luprekash Associates SEnpleyees Cratuy Tuad Torst
wige Trugt Dead dated 3G March 2009 far enspinyecs el JAL and ns subsihasies and appoined $30 Life losarance Coo Lt for e management of the s fonds tee
employees broefit As a subsehany of 1AL, the Camipany i padicpstate "o the s ane by contnBboleg s habainy accied up o the close of 2ach hoanciad year w e sy
lund

Below sables sers Torth the ¢hanges i the prolected bepelit shhyaton and pla asseis and amovats recopmses e Balancs Sheet as al moarch 312025 and Varcs L) 200

bew the respeetive meastrenent dates,

(i) Moversent in defined Lenefit obligations

Particulars Gratuity Leave Encashmen|
{lended} {unfundedi
Prisent value ol obligation ws st April 01, 2023 119 1.66
Canren selvies ool 0.7 044
Pagy Sonvice | ost - .
Inserest Cosd 623 0z
Benents panl
B s einugs aclimarin | kessd G H1.L18) aus
Present vabne of abligation ay at March 21, 2024 4.06 1IN
Cment serve gost 0,59 e
Pasi Sevvice ©osl . .
HTITTEN N .20 RN
Bonelds pin! {162} {1 118)
R as i ety - aetarial nssd dpand LAl iz
Prosent value of glitigation ax at March A1, 2023 1.0 .68
(i} AYovement i plan assels - gralaity {fonded)
Year ended Yoewr rodpal
Carticulars
- Slirch 31, 2025 Minreh 31, 2024
Fanw value ab plan assets aepegumimg of e (7.2 i 74
I xpectad vetme s o plan assesy {0515 RN DN
Frnpaleyer ol
HBeactits pul [[CN B3
ACnea i Y] .
Fair v o boe ad plan assels s end ol yiai S — o {?.8‘)?’ [T
(i) Recoyisell in stitemgent of Balanee Sheel
LoGratuity Humded) -
- Ayl As at March 3D
Pariculars
Mareh 31, 025 b1
Prasend vetue ol al:ligiaen (301 [E
THIE v dedsaly (7 &0y [ XA

_ Provision {i1) {118 (11.2%)




HIMALYAN EXPRESSWAY LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINAMNCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025
(AL Amnunl in INR Lakhs, unlesy ntherwise statenl)

B. Lesve eneashment (unlunded)

, As at As at Warch 31,
Particulars
March 31, 2025 ze
IMesesd value of abligation [N (2 28%)
Fain value ¢f plan assely -
Fravision (net) 1.6%) 12.18}
{iv} Reeognised in statement ol profit amd loss =
) Ciratully Leave Dueashment
Parcticulars
(lukilwd) {uninndul)
Crr-em Servige cost B .71 044
Past Sceyice Cest - -
Inlenest cnsl .73 N1z
Net actogrial {pam} £ 1oss iecopmized B . 005
Far ehe vear ended Mareh 31, 2024 1.44 4,62
Cuneni Service cost 0.59 .26
Tast Service Cost - -
Trlevesl cost 082 [
Nel actuariil (maun) £ Joss cecogmized - £.07
IFoi the year ended Mareh 31, 2028 1.41 0.4%
(¥) Expenses recagnised in Other Compriheasive Inegme
; Asat As ai Muarch i,
Particulars
March 3. 2025 24
Woenrersurement - etune ol g S Enssd o peanuity — (.54} 069
{¥i) The principal acivarial axsamptions vsed for cstimating (oe Campany’s defined benefil oblgations are et oul Detow:
Particubaes As Al As al
Aareh 31, 24025 March 3. 2024
[Mscount vate &9 0%
Uxpected vale ol increase i salary 4,143 4 0%
tarahiny rie 1% of LALLM 1IN0 o) LALLM
(2002 14 (202 - 14
) Gl
Lipte o 300 yoars 2.00% 2 00%,
From 3i 1w 44 years 5 0% 5 0%
Alve 49 vy 3.00% 300

{vit} Sensitivily a

Change in Bfeet vt Lifect on Ledve

Particulars assumpiing (,i:ulmiy Encashmuent abligation
obligation

I hscoume rale HL A0 {12y (07

0 50% D13 007

Sitlay Growth rate 1} 0% WA . 07

- 5% (0131 (007

Thie atweve seosibrary analysis s based onoa chang v ssszprion wisile Goling all ather asaonpons constind ba aracice, (s s anlikely o ocom and ot

okt svree of
e asaanplions may Be correlated When valentaemg 1he sensibviy of the delined Beneft cbbpaion oo sipmes acmans s assaorzahong the same methed oeogeciad o onedil
il Bass heen appdied s when calealanng the dedined benefil abliganen reecps
selak iy ialysis el nol zhamge s coapanet o the previens year

sed within The Balaoge Sheel e msethod and ypes of 28SUIMDOHN Lsga b e pranmy e

(vany Eslimale of expected henelit payments (in alsoluee leems ne. nndisconated)

T Giratuity Leave Encashmeol
Favticnbirs Iy i
(Tuniled) (unlunded)

Bl Ve 0i4 oar
1™ Y (0 1) G
D Y e i LRHA
viod Yem et ey
1n & Ve 047 TS
RR R (£l (R

[T TSI I8 1 [k




HIMALYAN EXPRESSWAY LIMITLD

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

(ANl Ampunt in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note no, 33

Information on velated party transaction pursuant {0 Ind AS-24 - Related Party Disclosure

A, List of related parties and related party transactions

{() Holding company
Jaiprakash Associates Lamited (JAL)

{i} Key managerial personnel (KMP)

Smt. Megha Kainth. Company Scerctary (up to Occher (49, 2024)

Smt Monjka Rawat, Company Secresary [woe f March
Shry Ranwvigay Singh,Director & CEQ

Stirs K C Baira, Director

Shri Vir Pratap Arora, Dircclor

Sl Sudhr Rana, CFQ (w.e.f 21.07.2023)

B, Transactions with related pariies

07,2025)

Particulars

Name of related party

Relation with related
party

Year vnded
March 31, 2025

Yeay ended
March 31, 2024

Expenditure:
Capex/ purchases
Siteing Fees

Sitiing I'ees

Situng Fees

Salary & perguisites

latprakash Associates [imited

Sh Ranvijay Singh
Shi K C Batra
Shn Vir Pratap Arora

Smit Megha Kainth & Monika Rawa

Howding company
KM P
KMP
KMPp
Kap

01,60
260
060
11 &S

0.28
0.40
0.30
0.30
17.21

C. Outstanding balunce

Particulars

Mame of related party

Relation with related

As at

As st

party March 31, 2015 March 31, 2024
Unsecured toan Jaiprakash Associates Limited Holding company 2862110 74,099.25
Retenlion meoncy Jaiprakash Associates Limited tlolding company 402.42 402,42
Drcferenee ghere capital Tmiprokosh Assovintcs Limited Holding sompany 5,001 70 ASTA NS
her payables laiprakash Assariates [1mited Haolding company 12787 123,87
Shri Ranvijay Singh KMP 0 ng .18
Shn K C Batra KmP? 0.09 018
Shni Vir Pratap Arora KMP 0.09 0,09

Smit, Monika Rawat KM (40 -
St Megha Kanth KMP 1.40

Iy Koy Manapentent Personnel Compensalion:
Particulars Year ended Year ended

March 33, 2825 March 31, 2024
flasic Pay £ 20 4.1
Huwse Rent Allowaiice | 35 2.40
Perguisite 595 i1
Provident Fund 02y 0,48

i cave Facashmend & Gratinty R -
Tutul Compensstivn 11.85 | 17.21

¥ Daoes not Include the provision mace By Giatuby are Leave encashment, as they are derermined on an actuarsal basis tor all the employees ogeila




HIMALYAN EXPRESSWAY LIMITED b
NOTES ¥FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2015
(Al Amount in TN R Laklis, unless otherwise stategd)

Note rg, 34
Company has not recoguised defernad 12X asse1 on account of abscnee of cortainly that sufficient fiture taxable ineosme will be avalable in foreszeable tuture,

Naote no. 35

.Digrlosure #5 per [nd AS 20- Governmeat Grangs

Guyernment pranls have been accounted for  accordance with the seeounting policy stated 1n Note $.3, X0 NHATD had provided a capital grant of (N8 11,700.00 jakhs, Pursuant ¢
the definsave agreernent entered nls on Apal 2, 2024, between the Company. 115 lender, und the buyet, as mentiosed in Note .1, with respect W the endorserent of the gomeessran of
the projeet for the balance concession pered, and upon receiving in-principls approval from NHAL dated December 30, 2024, tne Company Ras elassified the ielated assets (Tntangible
Assets) as Assels Held for Sale. As a resull, the deferred grant related ta halance coneession periad, has been crassabizd Lhabalitics related o assets held for sale

Nate no. 36

Segment infarmalion _

The Company is engaged m the business of construction, operation and maintenance ol lighways The Direcior and Chig? Exccutrve Qfficer of the Company, which has bees
identified as bemg the Chiel Operating Decrsion Maker (CODM), evaluates the Company™s performance, allocsle resources basew on the analysis of the various performance ndicatur
aof the Corpany as a single unit, Miercfore, there 15 only one reportable segment for the Campany The repoarting under the grovisions of ed AS 108 {Segment Informatian} does nat
anise,

Note no. 37
Impairment pl assety

wlneh is subgect to adgustmients as specified o the agicement. This valuat:on was based on o ciscounted cash flow analysts, incemporaling vanouws assusphons o cstimals a range of
values Based on this valuation, the Company entered iniy az agreement wik the buyer for the purchase of Toll Rights wmich is coatingent upan approval from the NHAL Thae
Company fius reecived Ninal approval from the WHAL hewever cortaim submissions are pending. Consequently, the Compaay hay vecagmzed an impairment on the Toll Rights to adjust
ther 1o therr B vaioe estinsted (o e batance shest date, in accordance with the terms of the definitive agreement

Note No.38
Debenture Bedemption Reserve has not been ereated inwiew of -nadequacy of profit during ihe period.

Note Ve 39
[he Company has nerher incuned any expenditare in foreign gurrency now o has cawned any meanme in fareign curency during :he poood

Note no. 44

Capital management

The Company manapes its capital structure and makes adjustmenis w light of changes s coconomie condwons anc the requiements of the Nnancial covenands Toe Company's primary
uljeetive when manggne vl s ensiie Gest Lmaietans do ellicient vagital stiactore and hearthy capital ratios and safeymaed the Company's nbihity 10 conbipne o5 0 £oing coneem
in order to support its business and provide maximum retumns for shareholders. The Cempany also proposes 10 mantain an oplaowat cagnlal snueciere 1o reduce the cost of capital,




HIMALYAN EXPRESSWAY LIMITED A
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ¥OR THE YEAR ENDED MARCIL 31, 2025
(AL Amount in INR Lakhs, pnless otherwise stateid)

For [he purpese of the Companys canilal managemienl, capial includes issued equity share capizal, security prenvom reserve and all olher equity reserves, Net debit includes, interest
bearing loans and borcowimps. rrade and other pavables less cash and shor tenn deposils The Company monilors capital usmg seanmg, rdio. waich s net debt divided by total eapilal,

Particulars As al As at
Artleutars March 31,2025 March 31, 2024

Dt

Lean and Bonewings 46,444 12 45,10 1.4%
Less. Cash and cash egurvalenis 4654 57 1,373.66
Tuatu] debil (=) 41,789.55 43,737.83
Capltal / Net warth (b) (47,128 25) (41.070.461
Geaving Ratio {a/h) RENEND -I06. 4%

Mo changes were macle w the objectives. policies or processes for sanaging capital dunng ihe years ended al March 30, 2025 and Maien 31, 2024

N ne, 41
Financial instrument and risk management

(a} Financial instruments by category

Finanetal 355015

As at As at

Purteulars
priiears March 31,2025 March 31,2024

a1 4 . N ¥
Financtal assets designated at amortiscd cost

Cash and cash cguivalzngs 4.654,57 1,375,606
Bank balances other lhan cast and cash cqmvalents 295 LAY
Ovher fizancia. assels 1516 2107
Tuotal finrancial ayscis 4.973.27 1.393.38

Financial LiabHities

As at As at

Particulsrs
i Muveh 3(,2025  March 3), 2024

Financial liahifitics designated af amortised cost”

Borrawimngs (ncluding cusvent malunly of loand 4,444,121 45, 11149
Teady payables TIN.20 81553
Oher Fnancial babilies 15.855.08 12284 73
Total financial liabilities $3.033.45 58.211.5¢

I . - [T . . -
"Careving value of ihe financiet pssets and fiaonered habiiities designoed ot smarised ens) appraximales s e valoe

Faiv walue hiciay by
The Comnany mainiaing pelicres and procedures to valug tinancial assels o Boarsen Debelines psmg e best ond mostelevant avanlatle data The far values of the Toanal aasels
and Tiakimbes cepresents the amount that would be recvtved w sell ap asset o praad e wanster o fatl=y i an ordery nansachion netwees makel pancipants a0 the measwement die

The fallowing talile poovicles the Fan value measurenent higraschy of Company s asserand Habihtes, grouped imto Lovel Troievet 3 as dessobed belew

Level Ts Hoincledes e walue of Timascn] csiwments irnded inoactive markels and sre based or quoteg matkel prces at e balinee sheer dane

Level 20 Thesz valvation techiigue: ma

se the wse of observable market sarn whore 1 e avinlabie and reiy as lite a5 puss-ble en e sompaay soeefic estimates I all significant
||1|'\!|r5 r[‘tqtllr&'rl nm ﬂ'lll \.‘J‘llli‘ DR T e f\b.‘;k’.r\.’ahl[\ the (R T CITEIRES ||'|l'l'l.'|".'l1 m Il'\"i.‘l 1

Level X dnouls fen ihe assel o Labalay that are net based on clmeovable marcet dasa fihal 1, unabservable mputsd B one or e al e semnlicam sapuls s oo based on observable
=aarket daia, the wesoomant < e luded in level 3
The company as aa fnanciatasse ane Saancial Habilities ag ot year end To which Lo volugion s requircd




HIMALY AN EXPRESSWAY LIMITLED ™
NOTES FORMING FART OF FINANCIALSTATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ERDED MARCH 31, 2025
{All Amouat in INR Lakhs, anless otherwise siated)

{c} Financtal risk managerient

The Cempany’s corporale treasury funclions provides servces (o tae business, coordinates access to the Pinascial mackets, monitors and manages the fnancal nisks relating to
apcrauens of the Company tsrough nternal risk tepars which apalyse exposure by degree and magriuce of nsk. These nisks melude market osk (ineluding cumency risk, irterest rule

risk and other price nsks, oredit risk and “igandity visk).

The princzpal linancial assets of the Campany wclude othor resgivables, and cash and bank balances thar denve directly fom s operations. he poncipal finanziab Lalpldies of e
i 0 [ingnee the day 1o day operations of tie Company.

Company, include leans and bevrows:~as, ade and other payak:les and the man pumose of these Gnanceal liabehnes

The Company’s seo.or mapagesent oversees the management of inese nsks. The semiot prodess.onals wark-a3 e maeoge the Ninaacial gsks and e appropoale fioancial risk
Thus nte explaing the rsks which e Company 15 expoesed o and policies and fromewark eéopied by the Company 1o maue

sserisks

(i) Market risk

Market Tisk s thie visk shan the Far value of foture case Nows ol a Anancal iestrament will loctoate becanse of ¢hange
cutrsncy fate fsk, nlerest vate nsk and other prce asks, soeh oy equily prce risk and semmodily price risk Fmaeom! mstrements affegted by markel nsks include loass and
hormon |

¢ lypes ob nsk

rket prices, Market mices comprises 18

%, deposils. mvestmenls |, and foreigs currency receivatles and poyables. The sengmraty analysiz i he follewing secuans refate to the posiion as at reaorling cate ‘The
gl othee postatetirement alligations, provisioss; end the non-fNinancie) asscis ang

anlys
It

exclude the unpact of movements in marke! vasizbies on the canving values of arat

o5 The sensareay of the relevant Prafit end Loss itepn and equiny s tre ool of the assermed changes i respestaee market ks, This s pased on he financel pssels and
arnabdines held os of Margh 21, 2025 and March 21,2024

(3) Imterest rate visk
latgzest rales nisk 15 The nisk that the B value er futere case Dews of 8 Opancal instaamend silt Rucloate begause of chanees 10 marse b migses! mtes, The Company’s cxposure o she
resk ool chanpes i marke! mlerest rtes relaes powmanly tw the Company’s debr obligauions with floatag mterest rales

The Cumpany’s exnnsare b the csk of changes o mackel interest mies eelites promanly to the Company's debl obhigations with Ooatmg inlerest rates which ace included m micrest
beazing Joans and borowiags in ‘hese speeia] gumose fisancal slatemenis, The Campany’s lixeo eate dorrownigs are sooed at amariised cost They are thevefore nol subiect Lo
lerest rate nsk, swce scither the carrying amount por tee future cash fews wild flucreate beeause of o ehampe womarkel mieres) tales.

Asar As at

Particnlar
articalars March §1, 2025 March 3), 2024

Foxed vate beropwings 149,224 11 1720559
Flaatene rate booewinas 1581068 16,4497.19

Lalprest rate heasedivity of Borrowings

With all ather vananles held constant, the followmg lable demopast-ales dhe sensvily ooa reasonably nossiole change wmomieest ites on Soanng e portion af 1oans and borawirngs,

Particu birs Year ended Year ended

Hi Hry

e Maurch 31,2025 March 31, 2014
[zzercase 1n 50 basis Demis (19.03) (82.4
Decreasi in 50 basis pomis 79.05 K2 49

(i1} Crelit risk

Creeht vshows e nsh ther copntespany will aol meet s abhigphons teading o a finaseial less, Smee the ©ampany™s prony susimess s wll collechen from genenal put:he whichos
primacy inocxsh theve s na credit rskonvolved, Adefauit on e financial asser o waen there is o sigmlicand meecase v e sredil nisk winch s evaluated based on e busimess
emvionmuent. TR assee are wotten off when the Campany s sestan abuoul the aan-recovery

(a) Cinancial inslonments aod cask deposits

redit ask trem balances wilh banks 2w Graancial mstitotons o macaged by the Campany™s hensingy depanmend moscoardssee with the Company’s policy Invesimenty ot suiplus

lunds ave made m bank depos-ts and other risk free seeunries The banis me sel e minimize the coseenbiatios o) tisks ond erelore mingire financial loss ihaongh commemany’s
potendal fadure omaks payments, The Company™s mexmuom expesune o eieaal psk far dhe components of e bataace sheec at 310 Maeh 2025 05 the canyig a-coms The

Company » magumun exposucs telabmg 1o financial mstrumens is roled my gaed-ty able belese Fimaneial assels s walien ol when Hhwte s one ceasorable exnecranen of recovery,

such ws debiten faliy 1o ergage i Lhe repayment plan wakoihe Cempasy

(AT Liquidity rish
il rabilnecs of dhe Comgany melude loans and boraws
cash Howe thad

pany's pescopal soarees ol hgmddy are dass and eash equivalenes and 1ne

el anc other payables. The Cos
s sk ol shortage of funds Lo meel

sl frows epesations, The Comypany maniuns | e Frmancsad alahibes wamg o ngedily sdanning el Tre Company slans o

anan suflewns cisl und marsketable seeunties 10 meed the obhiwaions s and when Jall doe

The table Lelove wealyses the Company's finaseal Habilties anc Seoncial assels ode relevant saniely grougnnes based on then contietual materitics:

Particulars Less than 1 year |Move than 1 vese|  Mare than 5
and up 1o S vems Leary Total

Acoat Muarch 31, IS

Fiinancial Assels s

123 405457 - 4054 57

N cashoand viste guirvaionts 258 . - 2us
===

,_..-._'EL_{}\I\\\

Cashoand cashocgn

Bank lalanees ol




HIMALY AN EXPRESSWAY LIMITED =
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAIRCH 3, 2025
(Al Amount in 1812 Lakhs, unless olberwise staled)
Other Fnanchil assels 31576 - - 33,76

Total Financial Assety 4.973.27 - - 4.973.27

Financial Liatilities

Basrowngs (nclwding currens maturily of nen-cutrent bommowings} 27,219 44 19,324 11 - 46,444.12
Trade payables 36,20 - - 136.26
Qiher financial hzb:utics 15.855.08 _ : = 15 855,08
Total financial liabililes 43.816.74 19.224.71 = 63,035.45
Pariculars Less than | yeur [Mwve than | year]!  ¥ore thaa 5 o]
and aplo S years years Total
As wl March 31, 2024
Finanetal Asscls
Cash and cash cquevalents (IR ER G - - 1,2473.66
Bank bziances ather than cash and cash equivalesnty 219 - - 279
Oiher fimancial assels 15 98 5035 - 21,93
Total Finaneial Asscts 1.392.43 5.5 - 1.398.38
Finaneial Lialiitics
Buarrowangs Dncloding cureent materily of noo-curmen: barrowings) 26,540 52 1,365 3% 17,205.59 45.111.49
Thady puyables Bl5 5N - - g5 52
her fingncial halwhes 12,284 7% - - 1228479
Total finznginl linhilities 39.640.84 1.365.38 17,205.59 58.211.80

Note no. 42

Provision ior Major Malnlepance

As mandaled vnder Congessicn Agreerent wsth NHAL the Company had carned out major manmienanse suring the yeor caded 31 March 2020, as cxplained i detaal uzider ootz no 29
of wevompanyimy finuneial stilements During the subsequent pense spto 31 Mareh 2025, add-tromal cost ol expense has been amesred by the Company en masnienance of road assel,
Base the same, managemenl of the Campany has made g assessment and eslmates thay ne furdhee ovision reqa-sed at bakanee sheel date. Accordingty, ne expense provisior for
major ramnlenance 15 reeagmessd m these financial siatements

Note nuw. 43
The Comgany baz certam dues w0 suppliees regsleced unoer Migra, Somltand Medmm Entepises Develapmen: Acs, 260060,0 MSMED Act™). Tae gisclosures puisuam o Lhe seal
MEMLD Ace are as fellows:

Parliculars Asal Axar
Mareh 31,2025 Mlareh 3, 24
Princrpal anoust due to suppliers registered under the MSMER Actand sommining wnpaid as ar peviod cad - -
Intetest due Lo suppliers vegisiered under the MSMED Aot and remam-cg anpand as ai peood ood - -
Prncipal amounts pad 1o suppliens registered under the MSMIID Act, beyond the appomied day dwesng the period - -
fnterest pavd, oiwer than wnder Scetjon 16 of MSMED Acl, 1o supphiers regisicred cndir the MEMED Acl, bevond ihe appoimed day
during the perniadl - h
Tntgrest pand, wneer Seetson 16 of MEMED Act, W sepplhars registered under the MEMLED Act, Beyond The cppomied day ducing the - -
Interesr due and payable towards supglhers repsteted wedes MEMED Acl, Tor payments alieacy made - -

Forther saerest iessmmng cue and payable T earhien perad

wNate:-
M abeve mtormanon regarding Micro and Smanl cmerprises has been determined o the exlent suct paties have heen ident-fied anthe Tasis of mlarmahon sanlable wilh the
Company




HIMALYAN EXPRESSWAY LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCEH 31, 2028
(All Amonnt in INR Lakhs, pnless otherwise stated)

Nole Ao, 44

Assets hedd {or Sale

The Lenders, Buyer, und e Company have exscuted s defininve agresment ("Agreement™ an Apnl 02, 2024 foc the substtution of concessinnaire, cncompaiging
the sale of il ngms for e remaming concession penod Purscant to the terms outhined in the Agreeincnt, 1he substilzon of the Company wah the rew Specral
Pumpose Vebiele (S1V) of Neo Assct 18 conbngent upen apgroval from e NHAD The comgany bas received In-Pnncipa Appreval on Decenber 30, 2024 and
final snproval wis zrenced on March 25, 2025, subject to ceramn condivors which the Cempany is in process of camplying with, The crterprise value of TNR
18,000 Lakhs s subiegt 1o adjuslznents in azcordance with the terms specifizc an the apraoment

In accerdance with Inc AS 105 “Non-Curment Assets Held For Sale and Discontmucd Operations” certain assets and labilines direcily associatcd wish these (oll
rgats af the Coepany have been classified ss *Held for sale' as the camying amourts of stch assets and nabniilics are w0 be recovened pringidally through sales
Itansnctian tather than consnwng use, The Desposal Group has been -ccoprized and measured an lawer of shar camying ampurt and fzin veloe less cost o sell, as
\he managemert beeves disposal of these non-current assets hy wiry of sale of toll rphls is expecied Lo be exeotted within naxt ong yea

The detauls of assets held for sale ane liab:lties associzted therelo e as Loder,
As ot

Particutar Mareh 31, 2025

Propeity, plart and eguipmuent 2 13.79
Intsngible ussets 3 17,573 66
Oiner financial assels 4 7
Tovenlories 4 4.58
Cither cyrment asseis 1" _ TR3S
Tutal Assets 17,684.38
Other nan-¢igrent haptdics

Other uon clrert lasilities (i G, 728 64
Trade payubles [k -
Other Nirancial 1atihties |9 19.9¢
Taotal Liabiities 6, 74K.61
el 10,935.77

*Tor profit end loss snd cash Nows Zrom discounting coeration refer Siatzimeot of Profit and Loss Account and Statement of Cash Flow respectivaly,
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HIMALYWN EXPRESSWAY LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMEN
(A Anant jn INR Lakhs, undcss otherwise stated)

HFORTHE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

Note no, 46

Other Stalutary Information

{a) The Lompany de act have any Benzom progerty, where any proceeding has been :mnated or pending agamst the Company for holding any Benzmit propersy.

(b} The Cempany Qo not have any iransactiong with compames struck o,

{c) The Company have not baded o invested 1o Crypto curreney or Yzl Cuareency durg the financial year,

(i) The Compinvy bave not advanced or leaned o mvested mds o any cther person(s) or eativy(ies), including foreign eatities (Tntermedianes) wath the wnderstanding what the
Imtermediary shall

- Irently noandirecily lend arnvest v other persons or entities wdentified w any mauner whatseever by or on behallof sthe compary (Ulamate Beneficianes) o)

- Provide any gumantee. secanity ar e ke 1o e on behalf ol the Ultimate Genefioanics.

{e} The Company has not ceceived any fund fiom any person(s) or entity{ues), matueing foreiga entities (Funding Pany) with the understandmg (whethe: recarded mownung ar
otherwise) ol the Company shall,

- Dcetly or indircetly lend or iovest i other sersans ar entihes seenttiied s any munner whatsoever by or an behali of e [ unding Parey (Ulimate Beneéioanes) o

- Provide auy pugeamlee, secindy s the ke on behalf of the Ulumate Beneliciaries.

() The Campany da rat have aay transacdan whieh is not recorded in the beaks of accounts that has been swrrendered or disclosed as scome during the year moihe tax
ASSCRSMCNEs Grreen e Incomis Tax Act, 1967 (such as, search or suevey an any ather :elevant provigions o the lncome Tax Act, 1561

{2} Tae Company has nol been ceclmed wiiful defasher By any bark or finaceinl instition or other lender.

{1 The Company dees non hield otie deeds o lemavable Properiy in ity cwn narc,

(51 The Compisy s nar revalued s property, plant & machmery and Imangible Assets or both during the cuirent ar srevious yeu,

() The Company coes wet have any loans 1 advarces in the naire of Toan are granted e prmoiers, directois, KMPS and the related gainios
Z003) entaen severally e ety wile other person, that ase repayable o4 dentand or withouol specnfyng any terms or penod of repayaents,

detined under Companies Act

{ki The Company las wewred cash losses amounting INR 35,48 izes i the current (hancial year,

(1) The company has nedher weoned any expendature 1n foceign currency nor o has eamed any wcome i foreign carrency durtag the yeas.

Note po. 47
Other accounting policies
aj Curvent anmsd nan-cuerent classRcation:-

The Company presenls assets and labhites i the balance sheet based o current/non-cinrent classification An ssset s classsficd as envrent when it sahsdes any ol the

torlawirng conte

1
i
=it eapecttd 1o be realeed il or s ntended for sale orconsumption in, the Conzpany’s normal epeaing cy
Har the veporting dale, or

U from being exchanged or gsed 1o settle o (abitity fon at feast 12 months 2fie) the

1e 1t s held piimandy toy the purpose of demg traded,

=t expected 1o be wealised st 12 months &

= s ensh or cash equivatent ueless it s resine g date.

Adiother assets e Llissi e as genecoeenl,

Aty s classifed as cooer:
s cxpeied (o be seltled =0ihe € ompa
s held ovnmanly o e purpese o bemyg naced;

= itrs doe o pe settled withm 12 months wéter the reportzag date; ar the Company cocs nol have an uncondit:ornal ngbt wo defer seitlemant ot the hab:iy for at least 12 months
afler the reporting dute

Al other habilities are classdhed as nen-cunent,

whaon it satistics any of the follewmg criera,

¥3

s narmnal aneatng cyche,

by lnwentores -

nventories of ssure and spaves are valued ot worghted avernge cos: morebeahizanle value whichever rs lowe:,

ol Tnsureoce Cloms -

Inswrance © Lums are accuweee for based oneceipt ol chomes aned e aceewated mader “Other Lheome”

dy Far Value Measiement -

The Cotagany easmes Neanes D instoumeads at For valoe an each batance skees date

lea o halal:

Fanr wilue -8 Ui e thiat soouhd be recepeed to sell an asset or paad oo v an ovder]y rangaction hovween marke! pabvigants at the measuczersent dale The
fail walue megsuremem -2 hisel o the presemption that the sransactsn oo sell the assed oo transter she habihity tekes place cithe:
or Lt hiy o

-l the absence o a principal merkel, mthe most advantzgeons marker T the asse: or lobiley

-l the procigal e ke o e asses

A B visloe medsutement oo non-Moancie] assel takes inta aceanmn & mahet pantizipant's ability to generate coosorae fenedils by wsinge the asset 1ty highost g

by selluze 10w anothes vk et pacticgant that wouolid ase the assel nyits highees e dest sse,

The Cuaiity uges valwanon teckogues that ane appropriate nz e covemstmces e o swhach seficent data e wnlebbe neome s T ealue, naxsmimg the wse el el

abservidie wpuis amd

Wi sl e e unabsesvalile inpues

Adlassels o halde e o w o b o valie i mensired oo disclesed o Gnaeeal stlenidizs e catgporreed wolaon the o sl arviy, st as felowes hasod o

the towest leve b sl es s Heae 1o te i value megstiiema, s 0 whnke,
Level T Quered tunaadnsiedd o kel praces in active mankets o wdentici] assers or Labibities
level 20 Valuatuom ey b whkich (e lowest Teset put al e signsticarn W il e vabee weasuemarst s dircens o mdneciy abse-visble

A

Ak




IRVIALYAN EXPRESSWAY LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025
(ARl Amaunt in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

¢} Financial instrurmcns: -

A financial instrumenl is any contract that gives rise to o financial asset of one entity and a Granoal hability or eguily mstrament of anather ent::

{1 Jantal Recopnition and measaremcnt

Al linaneial asse's and hamlines are recogaized at 1ts Sz value plus transachon cest that arg attributable o the zequeition of the DBnaroal assets and Lalnlites (ether than
Vsl asset e financial halbioes at e value thisagh Piolit & loss, Jowever, ade seceivasles that ao not contain sigoiit
RN ce

anl fngneval compenent are reasared at

{31y Snbsequent reasurcmend

Fmaniial assels carned ar amarhsed cosi
A hmangial dsse! s subseguently measured at amortised cost 180 is hield wothin 2 business model whose obyective 15 to hold the asset :n order 1o colleet contractual cash flows
ard the condaciual Leons of the finauenal asset give nise on specified dates to cash Jows shat are solely payents of pomaipat and interest on the prineipal sown cuistanding,

Firanciai assets at for value through otaer comprehensive meome (FVTOCL

A lieancl agset & sabsequently ccasured ot fanr value treugh cther compehensive incame it is held within a bosiness mode! whase abyzctive is achieved by buth
collecting conba ash Nows and selling financal assets and the contractual tenms of the: linancial asset give 1:5¢ on specilied dates to cash flaws el ae salely puyments of
poacipat and st oa thie prnessal amount outsianding,

Franegs] assots of Sur valne through pref or loss (FYTPL)
A Faanciat asset s measared ad fain value thiough preit and loss uniess 11 is measered al amortized cost or o1 fut valoz tareugh oher comprehensive income

Fmaoeal halities

The tiranzial habshises e sebsequently carried atamortized cost using the cffecnive interest method, For trade and other payasles maluring witkin ane year from the balance
sheet date, the canrying amcunts apgrosurale transaciion vilue due 1o the shor mawrity of these instruments

Note ao, JB
Previci e figures have been regrouped/rcananged, wherever considered necessary 1o conform (o carrent year’s classification.

Sumimary ul niatevial accoualing policies |
The geeampanying nores Torm an inlepeal paci of the Financial Statements,

For Doogar & Assochilps——===
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